
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR COUNCIL MEETING HELD JANUARY 20, 2015:  
A. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s): 

1. Town Hall Meeting held January 6, 2015. 
2. Regular Meeting of January 6, 2015. 
3. Special Meeting of January 12, 2015. 

B. Presentation of “Outstanding Citizens Award” from Police Department. 
C. Ratification of Finance Department’s Actions Regarding the Bills for December 2014. 
D. Award of Contract for the Construction and Installation of a Treated Wastewater Effluent Reuse System 

including Pipeline, Storage Impoundment and all other Appurtenances. 
E. Introduction of Steve Chavez, Parks Superintendent; and Katherine Hall, P.A.T. Coordinator. 
F. Quarterly Report for Roosevelt County Community Development Corporation & Discussion of Natural Chem 

Group. 
G. Recommendation from Economic Development Finance Review Committee for a Request for Economic 

Development Funds for the Roosevelt County Community Development Corporation: 
1. Recommendations and Findings of the Economic Development Finance Review Committee. 
2. Resolution #14-15-17, Approving Project Participation Agreement between the City of Portales 

ad Roosevelt County Community Development Corporation for the Use of Economic Development 
Tax Revenues to Support Economic Assistance in Portales, New Mexico. 

H. Appointment to Lodger’s Tax Advisory Board (LTAB). 
I. Discussion of a Resolution Approving a Waiver of City Fees in the Renovation of the Portales Inn for Tierra 

Realty Trust, LLC. 
J. Other Business/Citizens to be Heard. 
K. Executive Session/Closed Executive Meeting: 

1. Action to Convene in a Closed Session/Meeting to Discuss Matters as Provided for under New Mexico 
Statutes Pertaining to Open Meetings Referencing § 10-15-1 H.(2), for Limited Personnel Matters. 

2. Action to Convene in Open Session. 
3. Action Required as a Result of the Closed Session. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTALES met in regular session Tuesday, January 20, 2015, at 
6:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers at the Memorial Building, 200 E. 7th Street, Portales, NM in full 
conformity with the rules and regulations.  Councilor Parker chaired the meeting in the absence of the Mayor 
and called the meeting to order asking City Clerk Martinez-Terry to call roll.  Those present and constituting 
a quorum were: 
 
 
MAYOR:  Sharon L. King (absent)        
 
MAYOR PRO-TEM: Michael G. Miller (absent    
 
CHAIR FOR MEETING: Dianne Y. Parker 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Matthew Tod Hunton     Oscar H. Robinson 
   Leo Lovett      Antonio O. Salguero (absent)   
    Lenard Michael Lucero     Keith A. Thomas       
  
STAFF PRESENT: Sammy Standefer, Acting City Mgr. John DeSha, Public Wks. Director 
   Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk  Marilyn Rapp, Finance Director 

Pat Gallegos, Police Chief  Steve Doerr, City Attorney 
Veda Urioste, Deputy City Clerk  Susan Baysinger, Public Wks. Adm. 

   Marta Quiroz, Admin. Secretary  Katherine Hall, P.A.T. Coordinator 
   Steve Chavez, Parks Superintendent Dennis Hales, I. T. Director 

Charlie Smart, Police Detective  David Meeks, Police Lieutenant 
 Eric Muller, Police Officer 

 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Alisa Boswell, Press   Priscilla Dominguez 
 Mary Reilly    John Reilly 
 Rex Maggard    Ernestine Tennefos 



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  2 

 Chevrolet Mikaele   Craig Aulaumea 
 Thomas Tafoya    Johnny Pacheco 
 Stan Livengood    Mark Roper     
 
  
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Susan Baysinger, Public Works Capital Projects Administrator, to give the 
invocation, and John DeSha, Public Works Director, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance and the Salute to the 
New Mexico flag. 
 
 
(A)  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 
 

1. Town Hall Meeting held January 6, 2015. 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked the Council to consider the minutes of the Town Hall Meeting of January 6, 
2015.   She asked for questions.  Councilor Robinson expressed concern that those things requested by the 
citizens during the Town Hall meeting would be researched and handled and not forgotten.  Council/Chair 
Parker asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Thomas made the motion to approve the 
minutes of the regular meeting of January 6, 2015 as presented.  Councilor Hunton seconded 
the motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion 
carried.  
 

2. Regular Meeting of January 6, 2015. 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked the Council to consider the minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 6, 2015.   
She asked for questions and, hearing none, asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Hunton made 
the motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of January 6, 2015 as presented.  
Councilor Robinson seconded the motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the 
motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 

3. Special Meeting of January 12, 2015. 
 

Councilor/Chair Parker asked the Council to consider the minutes of the Special Meeting of January 12, 2015.   
She asked for questions and, hearing none, asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Lovett made 
the motion to approve the minutes of the special meeting of January 12, 2015 as presented.  
Councilor Thomas seconded the motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the 
motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
  
 
(B)   PRESENTATION OF “OUTSTANDING CITIZEN AWARD” FROM POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Police Chief Gallegos to present the “Outstanding Citizens Award.”  Chief 
Gallegos told the Council that the Police Department had been called out to the area of Avenue H and 
University in reference to a crash with injuries on October 29, 2014.  He told the Council that the Officers 
arrived and saw a male subject identified as John Reilly lying on the ground near his vehicle.  He stated that 
the Officers learned that Mr. Reilly had been working on his vehicle when he started the vehicle from the 
engine compartment.  He stated that the vehicle engaged when started and rolled forward pushing Mr. Reilly 
down and rolled on top of him stopping when it high-centered on top of him.  Chief Gallegos told the Council 
that members of the Nazarene Church saw the accident and began to assist in removing Mr. Reilly from 
under the vehicle.  He said that they were helped by other citizens passing by the location and were able to 
lift the vehicle and pull Reilly out from under the vehicle.  He stated that they stayed with Mr. Reilly until 
EMS and emergency personnel arrived on the scene.  Chief Gallegos stated that without the aid of these 
community members, Mr. Reilly may not have survived the accident.   He called the following citizens 



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  3 

forward to receive an “Outstanding Citizen Award:  Chevrolet Mikaele; Omar Espindola (recognized but not 
present); Craig Aulaumea; Thomas Tafoya; Natasha Padilla (recognized but not present); Johnny Pacheco; 
Derek Hunter and Lance Garrison (recognized but not present); Ernestine Tennefos; and Ben Langford.  
Chief Gallegos asked the citizens to say a few words.  Johnny Pacheco gave the glory to God before he left.  
Ernestine Tennefos said that only two of these people were outside the church when this accident 
happened.  She said she was talking to 911 reporting a fight going on in the neighborhood when some of 
the members of the church came out and started to try to move the truck.  She stated that the first time 
they tried, they could not move the truck, but the second time they raised it up enough for one of them 
could pull Mr. Reilly out from under the truck.   
 
  
(C)  RATIFICATION OF FINANCE DEPARTMENT’S ACTIONS REGARDING THE BILLS FOR 
DECEMBER 2014 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Ms. Marilyn Rapp, Finance Director to present the bills for December 2014.  Ms. 
Rapp told the Council she came before them every month.  She told the Council that the total paid in the 
month of December was $3,509,367.69.  She reported that the large expenditure in the Water and Waste 
Water Fund in the amount of $1,813,049.81 for construction expenses for the new waste water treatment 
plant.  She stated that the large expenditures in the General Fund were for property and liability insurance in 
the amount of $88,028.11, and workers’ compensation premium in the amount of $77,684.12.  She stated 
that the amounts were within budgeted limits and were necessary for continued operation of the City.  She 
asked for questions from the Council; and for ratification of the bills.    
 

December 2014 
Pooled Cash Fund 999 $3,509,367.69  

 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Lovett made the motion to ratify 
payment of the bills for December 2014 as presented.  Councilor Lucero seconded the motion.  
All Councilors present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
  
 
(D)  AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF A TREATED 
WASTEWATER EFFLUENT REUSE SYSTEM INCLUDING PIPELINE, STORAGE IMPOUNDMENT AND 
ALL OTHER APPURTENANCES WITH APPROVAL FOR THE MAYOR TO SIGN CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Public Works Director John DeSha to present the request to award the contract 
for construction of a treated wastewater effluent reuse system including pipeline, storage impoundment and 
all other appurtenances and approval for the Mayor to sign the contract documents.  Mr. DeSha told the 
Council that this is the final phase of the Reuse Project.  He reported that the four (4) bids were very 
competitive and were received from the following companies (as presented in the Council Summary): 
 

• TLC Plumbing & Utility --  $6,440,239.25 including NMGRT 
• SmithCo Construction, Inc. -- $6,448,730.57 including NMGRT 
• J & H Services, Inc.  -- $7,144,012.72 including NMGRT 
• AUI, Inc.   -- $7,299,865.80 including NMGRT 

 
Mr. DeSha told the Council that TLC is an excellent contractor and a good company.  He stated that Smith 
Engineering had reviewed the bid documents and had made a recommendation to award the contract to TLC 
Plumbing & Utility as the low, responsive, responsible bidder.  Councilor Lovett asked if the bid had come in 
as budgeted.  Mr. DeSha responded the bid will bring the entire project under the $24.5 million dollar loan.  
He stated that there may be a change order, but that it cannot be more than 10% of the project amount.  
DeSha briefly reviewed the extent of the project, which includes construction and installation of a treated 



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  4 

wastewater effluent reuse system including pipeline, storage impoundment and all other appurtenances.  
Councilor Robinson asked if the bid included the gross receipts tax.  City Attorney Doerr commented that his 
office had approved the bid by TLC and that the contract document should be brought back to the Council 
for authorization.  Mr. DeSha told the Council that he would do so.  Councilor Lovett asked what the penalty 
is for not being timely with the work and the estimated deadline for completion.  Mr. DeSha responded that 
the project must be completed in 324 days from start of the project.  Councilor Robinson commented that he 
was happy to see local contractors included in the project.  He expressed concern on roads that would be 
torn up for the contractor to do the work on the pipeline.  Mr. DeSha assured him that there will be direct 
communication with TLC (not like what occurred with Contractors, Inc., in the NMDOT project through the 
downtown).   Councilor/Chair Parker asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Hunton made the 
motion to award the contract for the reuse system to TLC P lumbing & Utility for the low  bid of 
$6,440,239.25 including NMGRT as presented and that the contract would come back to the 
Council for authorization.  Councilor Robinson seconded the motion.  All Councilors present 
voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
  
 
(E)  INTRODUCTION OF STEVE CHAVEZ, PARKS SUPERINTENDENT AND KATHERINE HALL, 
P.A.T. COORDINATOR 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Public Works Director John DeSha to introduce the new Parks Superintendent 
and Portales Area Transit (P.A.T.) Coordinator.  Mr. DeSha asked Steve Chavez and Katherine Hall to stand.  
He introduced stated that Steve Chavez had transferred over from the Waste Water Plant.  He told the 
Council that Katherine Hall had worked in the office as a Temp and that when the position for P.A.T. 
Coordinator had come open, she had applied for the position.  Councilor/Chair Parker welcomed the two to 
their positions with the City. 
 
 
(F)  QUARTERLY REPORT FOR ROOSEVELT COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORA-
TION & DISCUSSION OF NATURAL CHEM GROUP   
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked Mr. Stan Livengood, RCCDC Executive Director, to present the RCCDC quarterly 
report and talk about the Natural Chem Group (Natural Chem).  Mr. Livengood briefly mentioned the 
monthly reports that he had sent the City Clerk and talked about having met with Mr. Danny Armijo of 
NMMEP who happened through Portales last week and invited him to meet with DFA.  He commented that 
he had spoken with DFA about Natural Chem using their effluent.  He stated that he had introduced the idea 
to the Office of the State Engineer about this matter.  Livengood added that had had spoken to Jim Lucero 
of Golden Boy and that there was no news about starting up the peanut plant.  He commented that he had 
interest from the office of business assistance at ENMU to help Natural Chem.  He reported that he has 
spoken to a business that is interested in putting in a truck stop here in Portales and that he had spoken to 
Rosalina Vice about putting in a business—International Food Company—in the building next to Domino’s 
Pizza.  He reported that he has been talking to the Superintendent of Portales Schools about starting a 
program to educate young people in vocational training.  He commented that WDT has a need for diesel 
mechanics and CDL drivers.  He added that this is a very important program to have educated youth to 
support the local businesses.  He reported on another initiative – Yam Entertainment Committee.  He stated 
that movie theater companies are not interested in our community because it does not have the population 
to support a movie theater.  He mentioned the members of the committee:  Orlando Ortega, Randy 
Knudson, Draco Miller and Mark Vigil.  Councilor Parker asked if this was for movies other than children’s 
movies.  Livengood responded that the Yam Theater is being used for weddings and reunions, and that they 
are interested in trying to balance that with movies.  He commented that he has been researching seating 
for a theater and talked about portable seating.  Councilor Robinson asked if Natural Chem has anything to 
do with Abengoa.  Livengood stated that Natural Chem would not use the City’s water.  Livengood stated 
that he had spoken to the Office of the State Engineer and that they had expressed approval of the concept, 
but that they are not committed to approving the process.   



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  5 

Livengood told the Council that Natural Chem would not look at the ethanol plant as part of this project.  He 
commented that Natural Chem is coming to meet with the Council in a month.  He stated that he has been 
trying to get Abengoa to allow a tour of their building.  He added that Natural Chem wants about 10 acres 
close to the railroad.  Livengood stated that the negative part of this effort is the funding—they do not have 
complete funding at this time.  He commented that the company will ask for a letter of support from the City 
of Portales for presentation to lenders.  He stated that Natural Chem has told him that they have Golden 
Sachs and JP Morgan Chase interested in their project.  He told the Council that they want to come to 
Portales because of the ethanol plant building—their business is biodiesel with glycerin as a by-product.  He 
stated that they are also interested in liquid natural gas.  Councilor Thomas asked if there is any idea of the 
impact to the waste water treatment plant and if the City could curb the amount of water they can use.  Mr. 
DeSha responded that there are questions that need to be answered because of the amount of wastewater 
that could potentially put through the new plant.  The comment was made by Mr. Livengood that he 
understood that when Abengoa was operational, it used more water than the rest of the City and industries 
put together.  He added that he was told that, on the back end, Abengoa produced animal feed that was 
wet and created a bad smell for the community.  He stated that he worked for the community and not for 
the developers.  He did report that Natural Chem would create about 180 new jobs with about 11.4 million 
dollars in payroll.  He stated that he would send the documentation to the Council.  Councilor Lucero asked 
for the definition of glycerin.  Livengood stated that it was an additive to things like toothpaste and 
medicines.  The Council expressed concern about the impact on the new wastewater treatment plant.   
 
Mr. Livengood introduced Mr. Mark Rover of the State Economic Development office.  Mr. Rover told the 
Council that they would see the breakdown of the impact of Natural Chem to the community once they 
receive the economic impact statement.  He added that they would see quality jobs coming from the plant.  
Councilor Robinson asked if Natural Chem was eligible for funding from the state.  Rover responded that 
they would qualify, but that the funding is not available totally from the state. 
 
 
(G)  RECOMMENDATION FROM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE FOR 
A REQUEST FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDS FOR THE ROOSEVELT COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: 
 

1. Recommendations and Findings of the Economic Development Finance Review 
Committee. 
 

Councilor/Chair Parker asked Stan Livengood to present the recommendations of the Economic Development 
Finance Review Board on the request for LEDA funds for the Roosevelt County Community Development 
Corporation (RCCDC).  Mr. Livengood told the Council that the RCCDC had submitted a request for 
$40,000.00 for administration of RCCDC.  Councilor Lovett stated that he is on the Economic Development 
Finance Review Board representing the City Council.  He commented that LEDA funds have been awarded to 
the RCCDC for quite a few years.      
 

2. Resolution #14-15-17, Approving Project Participation Agreement between the City of 
Portales and Roosevelt County Community Development Corporation for the Use of 
Economic Development Tax Revenues to Support Economic Assistance in Portales, New 
Mexico. 

 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked the pleasure of the Council on the Resolution #14-15-17, approving the Project 
Participation Agreement between the City of Portales and the RCCDC for use of economic development tax 
revenues to support economic assistance.  Councilor Lovett made the motion to adopt Resolution 
#14-15-17, approving the Project Participation Agreement between the City and the RCCDC for 
use of economic development tax revenues in the amount of $40,000.00 to support the RCCDC 
as recommended by the Economic Development Finance review  Board.  Councilor Thomas 



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  6 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote by all Councilors present resulted in unanimous support of 
the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 
 
(H)  APPOINTMENT TO LODGER’S TAX ADVISORY BOARD (LTAB)  
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked that the Council appoint Ms. Chrisula Webb, General Manager of the Holiday 
Inn Express & Suites to the Lodger’s Tax Advisory Board to replace the previous member who recently 
resigned.  City Clerk Martinez-Terry reported that Mayor King had requested the appointment of Ms. Webb 
to the board.  Councilor/Chair Parker asked the pleasure of the Council.  Councilor Lovett made the 
motion to approve the appointment of Chrisula Webb, General Manager of Holiday Inn Express 
to the Lodger’s Tax Advisory Board as recommended by the Mayor.   Councilor Thomas  
seconded the motion.  All Councilors present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  
Motion carried.  
  
 
(I)  DISCUSSION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WAIVER OF CITY FEES IN THE RENOVATION 
OF THE PORTALES INN FOR TIERRA REALTY TRUST, LLC 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked for discussion of the requested resolution approving a waiver of City fees in the 
Renovation of the Portales Inn for Tierra Realty Trust, LLC.  Acting City Manager Standefer told the Council 
that this request had come in late on Friday from City Attorney Knudson.  Mr. Standefer stated that the City 
cannot give away any of its resources.  He commented that Mr. Steve Crozier can apply for funding through 
the Affordable Housing process.  He told the Council that Mr. Crozier probably asked for a waiver of City fees 
because he was looking at the cost of 60 meters.  Councilor Hunton asked that staff let Crozier know about 
the process to apply for funding through the Affordable Housing program.   
 
 
(L)  OTHER BUSINESS/CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked for items of Other Business. 
 
Concerns about Natural Chem Group:  Orlando Ortega addressed the Council regarding his concerns 
about the community as it relates to the Natural Chem Group.  He stated that his biggest concern is the 
usage of water.  He told the Council that water is the lifeblood and a limited resource.  He applauded the 
Council for the new Waste Water Treatment Plant and the Reuse Project.  He applauded them for their 
foresight.  Mr. Ortega commented that Natural Chem Group sounds great, if we lived in a perfect world.    
He told the Council that he serves on the Board of the Roosevelt County Community Development 
Corporation (RCCDC).  He stated that the information they had given the RCCDC did not mention water.  He 
expressed concern that this business will use an extreme amount of water.  Ortega told the Council that 
upon researching Natural Chem, he had found that they have researched and visited communities all over 
the U.S. for potential sites for their plants.  He asked the Council to think about 100 tankers lined up going 
to that plant a day.  He told them that a plant like this could shorten the lifespan of our community.  He 
reminded them of the ethanol plant that used 3 to 4 times more water than they said they would and then 
killed our waste water treatment plant.  He stated that he had expressed his concerns to the Mayor, but 
came to talk to them about the issue.  Ortega stated that water consultant, Dr. Charles Wilson, has given 
the City vital information.  He asked the Council to be smart and take care of the community.  He stated that 
these types of plants come and go.  He commented that he is pro-industry, but that the Council needs the 
full picture of this company.  He asked that they not encourage these types of industries to our community.  
He stated that we do not need to lead them on and let them know up front that we don’t have the water.  
He commented that there are ways that the City can create ordinances to protect us from industries coming 
in to demand water resources.  Councilor/Chair Parker agreed with Mr. Ortega’s perspective.   
 



Minutes of January 20, 2015…………………………………………………………..  7 

First Meeting in February:  City Clerk Martinez-Terry asked the Council to reschedule the next Council 
meeting due to a conflict with their schedule for February 3, 2015.  The Council agreed to move the meeting 
to Thursday, February 5, 2015.  The Council is scheduled to travel to Santa Fe, NM for the State Legislature’s 
Municipal Day.   
 
Tree down at Corner of Avenue I & 18th Street:  Councilor/Chair Parker asked Acting City Manager 
Standefer to check out the tree that has fallen beside the house at the corner of Avenue I and 18th Street 
(northeast corner of the intersection).   
 
   
(K)  EXECUTIVE SESSION/CLOSED EXECUTIVE MEETING: 
 

1. Action to Convene in a Closed Session/Meeting to Discuss Matters as Provided for under 
New Mexico Statutes Pertaining to Open Meetings Referencing §10-15-1 H.(2), for 
Limited Personnel Matters. 

 
Councilor/Chair Parker asked if the Council was interested in convening a closed session.  The Council 
indicated that a closed session was not needed at this meeting.   
 
 
There was no further business.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Councilor/Chair Parker adjourned the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
       
Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk 


